
CITY OF DANBURY
155 DEER HILL AVENUE

DANBURY, CONNECTICUT 06810

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT COMMISSION
(203) 797-4525
(203) 797-4586 (FAX)

MINUTES

March 14, 2007
Common Council Chambers  7:00 PM

Next regularly scheduled meeting date March 28, 2007.

ROLL CALL:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Bernard Gallo at 7:07
pm. 
Present were Chairman Gallo, Jessica Soriano, William J. Mills, Bruce R. Lees, Jon
Fagan, Matthew Rose, Alt. Kurt Webber, Alt. Mark Massoud.
Absent was Craig Westney.
Staff present were Daniel Baroody, RS, MPH, and Secretary Patricia Lee.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:    Gallo asked Kurt Webber to lead the Pledge of
Allegiance, which he did.

OLD BUSINESS:

113 West King Street Regulated Activity # 645 R

Frank Hordos/ F.D.J., LLC     Assessor's Lot #B06023, RA-80 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  12/13/06.    Revisions to septic & drainage systems.

First 65 Days:  2/16/07. Second 65 Days:  4/22/07.  John F. McCoy, PE, of  JFM
Engineering.   Baroody, Massoud and Mills met with the engineer 1/31/07 on site.  
Extension letter rec’d. 2/20/07.  Danzer’s report received 3/14/07. Report by D.
Baroody rec’d. 3/14/07.  John McCoy identified himself and signed in, stating I’m
here for the applicant, if you have any questions.  Massoud said I have some
comments. I, along with other Commission members, have been to the site.  I have
to say that I still have some reservations about this proposal for a couple of reasons.
Some have been reviewed in the report from the Health Department, Massoud said;
I note there were a couple of assumptions which I question.  First, the size of the
wetland makes if of great concern and value.  Second, the project does fall within
the New York City Public Water Supply Protection Zone, and under those
circumstances New York City wants to be able to comment on viability of the septic
system.  Massoud said the reason I point these things out is that the wetland is one
of great importance, and the proximity of the septic system to the wetland, that is,
closer than previously approved.  Ideally, one would recommend at least 75 feet
from the wetland, so I believe the previous Administrative Approval is the best fit for
the site. Massoud continued this application causes a greater impact to the wetland
than what was approved previously.  There is also unauthorized clearing taking
place; I don’t believe that has been addressed. Massoud said I state all of those
reasons as my concerns with this application, and they ought to be addressed: the

1               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



Corner Pond and wetlands associated with it. As Danzer says, at least 75 feet should
be maintained between the septic and the wetland boundary, Massoud concluded.
John McCoy came back to the mic.  My first comment, McCoy said, is that the
location of the proposed septic is to be able to divide the lot sometime in the future.
We do meet the 75 feet that Dr. Danzer is suggesting, but not the reserve area.
McCoy said, as far as the idea that there has been additional brush removal, there
may be a small encroachment, which we will repair.  A fence or boundary would
make it so it would be clearly marked.  The Administrative Approval has no such
stipulation.  The idea is that this is one of our mitigating measures, McCoy said.  And
the finger that comes in question near the stone wall, we’re easily as far away as the
other one.  I don’t think it will have an impact to the wetland itself, McCoy said.
Basically, the nutrients get cleaned in the first 50 feet.  Then McCoy discussed if the
water travels perpendicular to the contours, which it usually does.  McCoy said he
would like to finish this house and pursue a subdivision, which he can’t do if he
moves the septic over there.  The barrier will provide protection for the wetland that
is not there under the current permit.  McCoy continued regarding the New York City
watershed, there has been plenty of time to comment on it if New York wished to
comment. Massoud interjected I think they need to be notified so they have the
chance to respond; that’s been the process in the past.  I also looked at the CT DEP
natural diversity maps, endangered or threatened species, which indicates there is a
potential species endangered or of concern, Massoud said. So they should consult
with the Connecticut DEP.  I’m not sure if that’s been done or not, Massoud added. I
don’t put these things up as roadblocks, Massoud said, but this valuable wetland
deserves the greatest amount of protection, and as for my conclusion, the applicant
has reasonable use of the site, and the Administrative Approval was given at 100
feet away from the wetland, and the current proposal cuts that in half. I think that’s
too close, Massoud said.  It’s a very sensitive area, a watershed area, a perhaps an
endangered species area.  Gallo asked Baroody if he had any comments.  
Baroody identified himself, and said, looking at time table, we have the extension so
we have time to look into Massoud’s concerns; and as for the other question about
the New York City watershed, the burden is on the applicant to notify the Army
Corps of Engineers, or the NYC Water Supply people.  Gallo said to note, for the
record, that Commissioner Rose has arrived.  McCoy said there is no use required by
the New York City Water Supply or Army Corps of Engineers, I just don’t know. Gallo
asked McCoy what are you saying: you’re 75 feet away?  McCoy discussed the
distances for galleries and reserve. Alternatively, McCoy said, we could switch to a
different trench system, A Green Leach system, which he described, to take it at
least 76 feet away. We certainly could do that as an alternative, or you can make it a
condition.  The Green Leach system is a special installation procedure, McCoy said.
Massoud said to add a little clarification, it’s in a public water supply watershed, and
the entity that is the water company has to receive notification from the applicant; I
think Dan is probably right, Massoud said.  So that entity has the right to comment.
Gallo asked are there any other remarks or questions.  Lees made a motion to table.
Fagan said, out of respect for Mr. Massoud’s comments, so Baroody can look into this
question of the watershed area, and at the same time look into this alternate Green
Leach plan.  Rose asked to clarify the language to “obtain the plan”. Mills seconded
the motion and the motion to table to 3/28/07 carried unanimously.

37 Ironwood Drive Regulated Activity # 616 R

Peter & Kristen Schretzenmayer Assessor's Lot# C11018,  RA-40 Zone.

2               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



Date of Receipt:  1/10/07. Deck addition.

First 65 Days:  3/16/07.  Second 65 Days:  5/20/07.  Revised plan received from
Bob Young on 2/16/07.  Planting plan requested 2/20/07.  3/13/07 Received 65-day 
extension ltr.  Young requested to table to 3/28/07.  Lees made a motion to table
this.   Fagan seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously.

60 Shelter Rock Road Regulated Activity # 739

60 Shelter Rock Associates, LLC.    Assessor's Lot# K15107, IL-40 Zone.

Date of Receipt: 2/14/07. Parking lot expansion.

First 65 Days:  4/20/07.  Second 65 Days:  6/24/07.   B. Doto, III, PE, to meet D.
Baroody on site 3/16/07. Fagan made a motion to table.  Soriano seconded the
motion, and the motion carried unanimously.

Apple Ridge Road Regulated Activity # 741

Melvyn Powers c/o Commerce Park Realty, LLC

Date of Receipt:  2/14/07.         Assessor's Lot # E17072, IL-40 Zone.

First 65 Days: 4/20/07.  Second 65 Days:  6/24/07.  Medical office building, parking.
2/20/07 Received Artel letter to Engineering re: Lake Kenosia Class II Watershed.
Site is located in Aquifer Protection Zone. Request to table received 3/14/07. Gallo
said the applicant would like us to table.  Lees made a motion to table.  Fagan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.

5 Sugar Hollow Road / Marcus Dairy Regulated Activity # 743

Sugar Hollow Associates, LLC    Assessor's Lot#G17002, G17019, CG-20 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  2/28/07.     Parking lot expansion, improvements.

First 65 Days:  5/4/07.  Second 65 Days:  7/8/07.    Artel Engineering Group, LLC.
Gallo said the applicant wants to table. Fagan made a motion to table. Soriano
seconded it.  The motion carried unanimously.

79 Federal Road Regulated Activity # 744

E.W. Batista Family Ltd. Partnership  Assessor's Lot #L09019,L09029. CG-20 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  2/28/07.           Dunkin Donuts, drive-thru / walk-in.

First 65 Days:  5/4/07.  Second 65 Days:  7/8/07.    Artel Engineering Group, LLC.

3               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



Dan Baroody identified himself, saying recently I received photographs from Jennifer
L. Emminger, the Associate Planner, showing flooding on March 2nd.  Lees said that
Toyota site is between the wetland and 79 Federal Road; it is a parking lot.  Baroody
said these photos show it’s partly under water.  Lees asked could we please do a site
walk on this?  Baroody said we’ll get some dates together, and coordinate it through
Secretary Lee.  Lees made a motion to table this. Soriano seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS: 

94-102 Newtown Road Regulated Activity # 745

Danbury – Newtown, LLC      Assessor's Lot # M11002, CL-10 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  3/14/07. Starbucks Coffee drive-thru / walk-in.

First 65 Days:  5/18/07.  Second 65 Days: 7/22/07.   Ben Doto, P.E.,  9.46 ac.
Chairman Gallo introduced this item, with Commissioner Fagan recused. Fagan said I
will check in the hall for the applicant. Doto was not in attendance.  Soriano made a
motion to table.  Lees seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

114 Federal Road Regulated Activity # 746

Fairfield County Bank    Assessor's Lot # L08015, CG-20 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  3/14/07.      Bank façade renovation/ drive-thru / canopy.

First 65 Days:  5/18/07.  Second 65 Days:  7/22/07.   CCA, LLC. Abigail Adams, RLA.
Chairman Gallo introduced this application.  Abigail Adams placed the plan on the
easel. Commissioner Fagan has returned to the panel.  Abigail introduced herself
stating she represents CCA, LLC, and the applicant. She described the site, on the
Home Depot site, about a 20 acre site. Here’s Nabby Road, the northeast corner
here; it was a Shawmut Bank. It’s in the CG-20 Zone, and the bank use will remain
the same.  It’s across from Toyota and Dunkin Donuts.  Adams said the client is
proposing to strictly redesign of the façade of the building and add a canopy
structure, and a second drive -through window with ATM, and shift the island to
make a bypass lane.  Adams explained that none of what’s existing is changing.  I
request that this be approved administratively, Adams said. Baroody said I would
agree that we could do this administratively.  There’s no real threat to the Still River.
Gallo asked if the Commissioners had any questions.   Lees asked does any runoff
from the parking lot go directly across the road and into the river?  Adams said I
believe it does, but we are not changing the drainage in any way, shape or form.
Lees asked can we get some stenciled signs for the drains in the parking lot, if this is
approved administratively?  Realty Income Corp. owns the property, Adams
explained, but I believe they would be amenable to the stencil idea.  Lees and Adams
discussed this. Fagan said, please, I motion to move this to Administrative Approval,
with the stencil condition.  Webber said I know you said there’s not to be additional
changes, but there will be a loss of some parking.  Adams replied yes, they will lose
two spaces, and she discussed that 1121 parking spaces will remain. Mills said on
current projects we always ask for a maintenance agreement, sweeping in the Fall
and Spring.  Is that in place, if this is all owned by one company?  Massoud said

4               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



when Home Depot was revised, I was around, and I am pretty sure there was a
maintenance agreement;  whether that’s occurring or not is a different story. Mills
said so then I do not need to request that drains be retrofitted with a filter? Massoud
said I don’t how the lot is being maintained, but “it can’t hurt”. Mills said  then I ‘d
like to ask that the drains be retrofitted with filters. Fagan said to Mills that CCA
represents the  people who are simply changing the bank façade, removing two
parking spaces, and moving an island.  Abigail Adams said technically Fagan is
correct, and she described lessee and ownership situation.  Adams said we are
d County Bank. If there are questions with the existing drainage on the property,
that should be handled by the property owner, in my opinion.  Baroody said okay, we
can do that.  Lees seconded Fagan’s motion to  move this to Administrative
Approval. Gallo asked are there any remarks on the motion? The motion carried
unanimously.

15 Hillandale Road Regulated Activity # 748

Elio Ferreira      Assessor's Lot # F08097, RA-40 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  3/14/07.   SF residence, well, City septic, driveway.

First 65 Days:  5/18/07.  Second 65 Days:  7/22/07.    R.J. Gallagher, Jr., PE.
Chairman Gallo introduced this application as Mr. Ferreira came forward and placed
his plan on easel.  Good evening, my name is Elio Ferreira and I reside at 18 Long
Ridge Road in Danbury.  Together with my brother, we have owned this lot (15)
since 1981.  We have a dangerous man-made condition, created by a man-made
pipe for runoff.  Our proposal hopes to solve this condition.  Road drainage was
installed years ago on Hillandale Road, which discharges water about 20 feet into my
lot; our deeds and City of Danbury map 1905 refers to a drainage easement already
granted between lot 37 and 38.  It has created an enormous ditch at the edge of
road, Ferreira said, as presented by Ralph Gallagher and Soil Scientist Henry T.
Moeller. We have this dangerous public condition that needs to be repaired
immediately.  There really are no wetlands on this area. Ferreira said this manmade
condition continuously erodes. The variance will substantially improve the area and
drainage, as presented by the drawing. What we plan to do is to have a catch basin
at edge of the property; have a pipe about five feet into my property, then run it
down into riprap, as you can see on the plan.  The 24-inch pipe will flare out and
that’s where the riprap will be put, Ferreira continued.  I will be responsible for a
sedimentation and erosion control plan, plus a stability pad, installed and inspected
periodically. We will follow all general notes in that plan, and I have been busy over
the years, and this proposal is long overdue, and now I have the time to do this.  I
ask that this be approved and take advantage of the upcoming weather.  Are there
any questions, Ferreira asked.  Gallo said thank you at 7:48 pm.  Lees said I was
going to ask Dan Baroody a question:  might this be moved over to Administrative
Approval?  Baroody said according to the soil scientist’s report, it’s an intermittent
stream, so it would not be proper to approve it administratively.  It has to go to the
Commission.  Massoud asked where on Hillandale are you located?  Ferreira replied,
go up Clapboard Ridge past the high school, down to the bottom, take a left;
Hillandale starts there and goes all the way around, almost half way down on the
right side.  There are houses all around the circle, my lot being one that is empty.
There are houses at 13 and 17 and so forth. Jon Fagan said I know this area very
well; I’m sure the City hears about the drainage problems here all the time.  I highly
suggest, Fagan said, that we visit and see what’s going on here; and knowing the

5               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



area, I know what he’s describing, but it’s hard to see on paper.  Ferreira described
size of the ditch, plus now they are using it as a dumping site.  There are plastics,
bottles, chairs, it’s disgusting, and I am here to do something. The whole thing is out
of control there.  Ferreira said I have talked to Mr. Antonio in the Public Works
Department; I’m willing to do it. It’s dangerous out there.  In fact they have asked
me to put up a fence, Ferreira said. Massoud asked water will be directed where?
Into the storm drain system?  Ferreira replied yes, and he explained the catch basin,
the 24-inch pipe, slowing down the speed of the water, the rip rap, and all sediment
will be contained here and on the catch basin.  It will not affect the property down at
the bottom.  Also, as for the road runoff, it’s the lowest portion of the road, and
there are humps in the road, so all the water just gushes into my property, Ferreira
said.  And again there is an easement already granted to the City.  Lees made a
motion to table.  Fagan seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously to
table to 3/28/07.

Padanaram Road Regulated Activity # 749

Cotswold of Danbury, LLC       Assessor's Lot #F07052, RA-20 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  3/14/07.     57 SF cluster residences, Tighe & Bond.

First 65 Days:  5/18/07.  Second 65 Days:  7/22/07.   Surveying Associates, P.C.
74.15 acres.  Request to table by Paul Fagan to 3/28/07. Gallo introduced this
Cotswold application.  Mr. Fagan recused himself.  (Tape 1 flipped to side B).
Baroody identified himself at the mic, saying for this application the applicant is not
here, and they communicated to Staff that they want to present in two weeks.  I
want to review it myself and decide if there’s a significant enough impact, so we may
need to hold a Public Hearing.  Massoud asked are there plans?  Yes, it’s self-service;
everyone please take the plans home.   Lees said so Mr. Baroody will make a report
if a Public Hearing is required.  Baroody said to determine for what reason is a Public
Hearing required.  And in order to make that determination, I need time to review
this, Baroody said.  What Mr. Lees is asking is can we have that two days before the
meeting of 3/28/07, Chairman Gallo clarified.  Baroody said you still have to hear
them; you have to let them talk. My task is to report to you if a Public Hearing is
needed and why, and we can then set the date.  Lees made a motion to table this.
Soriano seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously at 7:58 pm.  

APPLICATIONS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL: 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF ACTIONS:   

32 & 34 Birch Road Regulated Activity # 750

City of Danbury    Assessor's Lot # C07078, C07079, RA-40 Zone.

Date of Receipt:  3/14/07.    Replace open swale with storm drain pipe.

First 65 Days:  5/18/07.  Administrative Approval by was done by Dan Baroody on
3/14/07. Chairman Fagan has returned. Gallo introduced this item. It was given
Administrative Approval, Gallo said.  Baroody identified himself at the mic and
explained, it’s a small piping project to be conducted by the City Engineer’s office,

6               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07



and there no impact to any wetland or watercourse.  Gallo said, “Thank you, Dan”.

CORRESPONDENCE:  

Aquatic Pesticide Permit Application from Northeast Tree, Pond & Turf Service, Inc.
to treat Shelter Rock Pond for filamentous algae, chara, potamogetons. This is “for
your reading pleasure” later this evening, Chairman Gallo said.  

EIC ADMINISTRATION & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

Acceptance of Minutes for February 28, 2007, EIC Meeting. Lees made a motion to
accept the minutes as printed.  Mills seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT:

Mills asked, through the Chair, we were supposed to be notified when Marcus Dairy
is flagged by Artel Engineering Group, LLC.  Baroody said neither one has indicated
that it’s been flagged, so that’s the delay on the site walks. Mills asked to notify us
through Pat, and include Hillandale Road when we’re in the area. She can notify us
about times, availability for site walks.  Matt Rose said, “Ice cream, donuts”.
Baroody said we did site walks at 113 West King Street, but we have to look into
these other issues.  The invitation is always there to go out and look again.  Webber
asked for clarification on the location of Dunkin Donuts, which Baroody addressed.
Mills made a motion to adjourn. Soriano seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously at 8:04 pm.

The next regular EIC meeting will be held on March 28, 2007, at 7 pm.

7               EIC Minutes                 3/14/07


